KING
COUNTY

LIBRARY
SYSTEM

PRESENT
KCLS BOARD

Judge Richard Eadie
Judge LeRoy McCullough
Lucy Krakowiak

Jessica Bonebright

KCLS Staff
Bill Ptacek

Linda Glenicki
Charlene Richards
Denise Siers
Nancy Smith
Bruce Adams
Jeanne Thorsen
Julie Wallace
Bruce Schauer
Jed Moffitt

Kay Johnson
Jennifer Wiseman
Judy Weathers
Rebecca Tuck
Michele Drovdahl

GUESTS

Barbara Spindel
Jim Bowen
Radhika Kumar
Marguerite Sutherland
Gary Robinson
John Green
Phyllis Forister
Lori Robinson
Becky Brooks

H. David Kaplan
Lisa Johnson
Cathy Taylor

oOo~NOoO O WN PR

King County Library System
Board of Trustees

Service Center
Spm ¢ 27 June 2006

MOTIONS APPROVED

Motion to approve the Board Agenda as amended

Minutes from May 30, 2006 were deemed approved

Motion to approve Payroll expenditures

Motion to approve General Fund #0010 expenditures

Motion to approve Construction Bond Fund 88 #3020 expenditures
Motion to approve Capital Project Fund 2005 #3070 expenditures
Motion to approve Gift Fund #6010 expenditures

Motion to approve Resolution 2006-04 - Surplus Computer Equipment

CALL TO ORDER

LeRoy McCullough called the meeting to order at 5:07pm. After each Board member introduced
themselves, he explained that a public forum would follow completion of the action items.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Richard Eadie moved approval of the agenda. Lucy Krakowiak seconded and the motion
passed unanimously.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES

There having been no changes to the draft May 30, 2006 minutes, they were deemed
approved.

FINANCE REPORT

Linda Glenicki reviewed current finances noting May expenditures were $6.3 million versus a
monthly budget average of $6.8 million. Year-to-date expenditures are $31.6 million (38.6% of
budget versus 41.7% of the year completed). This compares to May year-to-date expenditures in
2005 of $29.0 million (36.6% of the budget). Growth in expenditures is at 9.0%. Linda Glenicki

pointed out that insurance charges in May of $211,000 reflect the 2006 portion of the annual renewal for
business insurance policies covering property and casualty, general liability and various miscellaneous policies.
The apportioning by fiscal year reflects a new accounting policy implementation (modified accrual per GASB 34).

May revenues were $14.7 million with a significant portion of the first half of the year’s property taxes being
collected (just over 50%). Year-to-date revenue is $40.3 million (3.4% ahead of 2005). Credit card payments in
May at 22.2% of total payments are slightly below April’s level of 23.0% of total payments.

May expenditures from the 307 Capital Project Fund 2005 were $137,000 with the largest being $36,000 for
construction planning work on the Burien Library project and a $25,000 payment for land purchase in Duvall. May
expenditures in the 302 Fund were $9,000 including $6,000 in legal fees for the Black Diamond Library project.

PAYMENT OF BILLS

Richard Eadie moved approval of Payroll Expenditures in the amount of $2,152,479.91; Checks May
1-15™ Chk #: 123000-124039; 131693-131896 and May 16-31° Chk #: 124040-125092; 131897-132087.
Lucy Krakowiak seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

Lucy Krakowiak moved approval of General Fund #0010 Expenditures May 2006 in the amount of
$6,655,863.22; (Travel Advances) Chk #788-789, (5/5) Chk #91385-91467; 91468-91472, (5/10) Chk

KCLS Board Meeting

Page 1 27 June 2006



#91477-91636, (5/11) Chk #91637-91714, (5/17) Chk #91718-91826, (5/18) Chk #91830-91839; 91840-
91843; 91844-91913; 91919, (5/19) Chk #91928-91974, (5/24) Chk #91975-92040; 92041-92048; 92049-
92105, (5/31) Chk #92113-92197, (6/1) Chk #92200-92238, (6/2) Chk #92239-92251; 92252-92255; 92256.
Richard Eadie seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

Richard Eadie moved approval of Construction Bond Fund ’88 #3020 Expenditures May 2006 in the amount
of $9,368.57; (5/9) Chk #91473, (5/17) Chk #91827, (5/18) Chk #91914, (5/24) Chk #92106. Lucy
Krakowiak seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

Lucy Krakowiak moved approval of Capital Project Fund 2005 #3070 Expenditures for May 2006 in the
amount of $137,211.40; (5/9) Chk #91474-91476, (5/17) Chk #91828-91829, (5/19) Chk #91927, (5/24) Chk
#92107-92109, (5/30) Chk #92110-92112, (5/31) Chk #92198-92199. Richard Eadie seconded and the
motion passed unanimously.

Richard Eadie moved approval of Gift Fund #6010 Expenditures for May 2006 in the amount of $1,582.98;
(5/11) Chk #91715-91717, (5/18), Chk #91915-91918, (6/2) Chk #92257. Lucy Krakowiak seconded and the
motion passed unanimously.

RESOLUTION 2006-04 - SURPLUS COMPUTER EQUIPMENT

On behalf of the Finance Committee, Lucy Krakowiak referred the Board to a listing of computer equipment to
be declared surplus. Bill Ptacek said the items would be disposed of via a sealed bid process. Lucy Krakowiak
moved approval of Resolution 2006-04. Richard Eadie seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

PUBLIC FORUM

LeRoy McCullough stated: Members of the public were invited to share their comments and concerns with
members of the Board and Administration about library-related issues. The staff will be asked to respond to
main topics and the Board will take the comments and responses under advisement. The forum will be
conducted to maximize public input and participation. All are asked to be courteous of others, to listen to each
other and to focus on the highest good of the entire library community, both for the present and the future.
He added that time limits will be imposed only as necessary to affect a fair airing of the concerns and staff
responses. He encouraged everyone to be respectful of patron, staff and Board members’ time. Finally, he
explained that the Board would group the discussions by topic and allow each person to speak on their topic
individually in the order they signed up. Staff will then respond to categories of questions or comments. The
Board will take the questions/comments and answers under advisement.

Boulevard Park Library Guild

Cathy Taylor, a member of the Boulevard Park Library Guild (the oldest, longest serving organization in the
community), explained that although the Guild has stayed out of the recent controversy about clustering
because Boulevard Park is in the unincorporated Highline area where its governance, as well as the library
service, may change in the near future. She said she felt the public forum would be an appropriate venue to
voice concerns regarding recent treatment of the Guild. As a community, she said Boulevard Park is low income,
has a large immigrant/refugee population, more rentals than homeownership, low voter turnout, few amenities
and many social services. With no Boys and Girls Club, community club or kid-friendly business district the library
is the only place where people can find out about what’s going on in the community and where any and all
programs presented for youth are desperately needed and appreciated. Cathy Taylor explained that nearly 80
years ago, a group of women got together to have a monthly tea and discussion group forming the “The Women’s
Progress Club of McKinly Heights.” They presented programs on topics of the day and shared household tips.
Later, they involved themselves with ways to support and foster education in their community. In 1933, they
changed their name to the “Wednesday Study Club.” In 1937, they decided to sponsor a library and finagled their
husbands into building one. Through a handful of dedicated volunteers, donated land, materials and the all-
powerful bake sale they achieved it for a cost of $351. In 1943, they got a full-time librarian by being the first to
join the newly formed King County Library System. In 1962, this group of volunteers changed their name again,
becoming the Boulevard Park Library Guild. Since the beginning, the Guild has been considered a Friends group
that has supported the library and the community, never feeling these have been mutually exclusive goals.
Earlier this year, however, Cathy Taylor said KCLS chastised, humiliated and repudiated the Boulevard Park
Library Guild in a public forum, in essence stripping them of “Friends” status. The insinuation was that the Guild
was a renegade, rogue group, which she said had a certain appeal and charm for the members whose average
age is 60. She said the Guild was treated in a patronizing, cavalier manner that showed a lack of respect. As a

KCLS Board Meeting Page 2 27 June 2006



longstanding Friends group, she said they were not even afforded the courtesy to hear it in person by an
appropriate representative. When they asked for clarification about their status with KCLS, the message was
delivered by the local cluster librarian, whom none of them had ever met before due to clustering.

Nancy Smith responded, saying she’s worked with this group for years and explained that when KCLS requested
that all Friends groups bring their bylaws into compliance with what KCLS needed to meet the State Auditor’s
requirements, the Boulevard Park Library Guild did not. She pointed out that a group of Friends of the Library
from across the System met in May with KCLS’ legal counsel who explained to the relationship of the Friends to
the Library System in respect to items donated by the public to the Library System, which are passed to the
Friends who sell them. Essentially, the funds generated by the Friends by selling those items are supposed to
return a financial benefit to KCLS. Nancy Smith noted that in addition to being unable to get the Guild to update
their bylaws, staff has historically had difficulty with the Guild regarding programs provided, communication
regarding programs, etc. She emphasized how difficult it was for KCLS to take action against the Guild because
of the long-term nature of the relationship; however, the Guild did not recognize KCLS’ needs as governmental
agency. Cathy Taylor reiterated that the treatment of the Friends was more so the issue than that of the bylaws.

Federal Way 320" Library

H. David Kaplan said that in his Director’s Report, Bill Ptacek talked about Federal Way developing a partnership
among KCLS and Highline Community College with a vague phrase about “developing a library presence in the
downtown area.” He asked what this meant and what progress has been made on the idea. He commented that
there’s a long lead time for building a library. According to KCLS’ website, he said the new Federal Way 320"
Library was scheduled to open in 2011. At the April 12 public meeting, Director Ptacek said the date was 2013. In
information obtained from Linda Glenicki that date is 2015. He asked why the dates are creeping forward and
what the correct timetable is for the project. Finally, he asked for clarification about the relationship between
Friends groups, KCLS and the KCLS Foundation. He said he received conflicting comments about how Friends
groups operate and the involvement of the other two entities in how the funds that are raised are allocated.

Bill Ptacek said the City of Federal Way asked that KCLS meet with Highline Community College and Federal Way
Public Schools to explore a partnership downtown. Knowing that the Federal Way 320™ Library will stay where it
is, KCLS agreed to explore this possibility since Highline Community College has a Library Technician training
program that would compliment a library outlet. He emphasized that no commitments were made by any of the
participants. H. David Kaplan said he welcomed hearing that the Federal Way 320" Library would be built at its
current site. Richard Eadie said KCLS is immersed in a 10-year building program. He said many interested
municipalities have come to KCLS to discuss possibilities for coordination in their community, to which KCLS staff
must be responsive. He suggested seeking ways to keep the public informed of such discussions.

Regarding the project timeline for the Federal Way 320™ Library, Linda Glenicki explained that the date in the
information she provided was indicative of when KCLS needs to have the library fully staffed and was not
representative of the construction timeline. Kay Johnson added that the original plan listed 2011 as the project
starting date, which could include bidding for consultants, etc. Construction is estimated to begin in 2013.

Finally, Jeanne Thorsen explained that the mission of the KCLS Foundation is to mobilize community resources to
support the Library System. The Friends of the Library groups do so locally. She said the Foundation tries to work
with the Friends without impeding their activities. Bill Ptacek added that over the years, the Foundation has
been responsible for recognition of the Friends. He also mentioned that when the KCLS Board concluded that
more income could be generated by selling discarded materials online instead of through the annual book sales,
the Foundation worked out the details for allocating the proceeds equitably among the Friends groups.

Board Minutes

Lisa Johnson read a statement on behalf of Luraine MacLeod, who was unable to attend the meeting. Luraine
MacLeod requested that Board minutes be recorded differently. Rather than paraphrasing or summarizing
comments, she asked that statements be included in their entirety, especially since the public is given neither
adequate time nor venue for input. She said she hopes Board members study and respond to comments.

Credit Card Processing
Lisa Johnson said she used to sell credit card merchant services, of which she said the most expensive means of

collecting payments was online. She mentioned that the fees were outrageous for transaction costs, statements
and other ancillary collection activities. In KCLS’ situation, where fines run $0.25 to $1, she asked what

KCLS Board Meeting Page 3 27 June 2006



percentage of the fines are being “eaten up” by transaction costs. Linda Glenicki explained that KCLS initially
shared the same concerns about transaction fees for online payment of small fines. She noted, however, that
KCLS receives about 2,500 payments per month with the average fee ranging from $0.45 to $0.50 per
transaction. To date, online transaction have been used more often for paying for lost items, than for small fines
accrued, so the average payment is between $8 and $9. Based on this transaction volume, KCLS pays $15,000
annually in fees. Linda Glenicki pointed out that a calculation of staff time saved handling these transactions
amounts to about $11,000, which means that KCLS has a net cost for providing the service of about $4,000. She
added that the service is available 24 hours a day and that about 25% of payments are received at times when
the libraries are closed. Richard Eadie noted that in November 2005, the Board agreed to review this service
annually to ensure it is in KCLS” best interests not to charge transaction processing costs for using the online
service.

Clustering & Rotation of Staff

Barbara Spindel, a patron of the Newport Way Library for 19 years and an officer of the Newport Way Library
Association for the past 10 years, said she has always valued the cooperative partnership between the KCLS’
administration and those working to support the local libraries. She expressed hope that more open dialogue will
help get the partnership back on track. She said heavy attendance at Board meetings for the past eight months
indicates that the Board and administration are disconnected from the local libraries. Clustering has been a big
issue, but so has the placement of the Federal Way 320" Library, changes in plans for the Black Diamond library
and site issues in Kenmore and Newcastle, to name a few. Many of these issues have been resolved, but they
wouldn’t have arisen if the administration was better connected to the community. She emphasized that the
Board has lost the support of many constituents by instituting clustering - a program that was poorly planned and
poorly received by staff and patrons. With a bachelor’s and a master’s degree in mathematics she said she saw
no compelling statistics in the First Quarter Evaluation to show support for rotating staff. For example, the
report says circulation is up, but since it’s been up since 1990, there is no reason to connect it to clustering. The
same is true for open hours, which were increased in 2005 without clustering. She said having different staff in
different locations doesn’t affect open hours and could have been achieved without clustering. She highlighted
the numbers the Board doesn’t. For example, many hours and much energy have gone into creating a schedule to
rotate staff. KCLS is on at least the third rendition of the schedule, each one lowering the number of people
rotating and the number of hours spent away from the local library. She asked the Board to think about making
positive changes that will improve staff morale, patron satisfaction and put the administration back on track.
Barbara Spindel suggested changing the cluster managers’ title and making them local area managers who
continue to supervise their areas and move between branches, but stop the rotation of other staff. She asked
KCLS to go back to providing cross training and staff development opportunities that excite library staff. She said
staff spent time visiting other libraries voluntarily in the past and, if they feel it would help them do their job,
would do so in the future. Every library is in need of a branch manager who has ownership and responsibility for
their library so patrons don’t have to report that the bushes need trimming or the lobby needs cleaning. She
suggested that KCLS go for truly improved efficiency and come to a compromise where staff, patrons and
management can work together again. Finally, she said that the Friends invited KCLS to attend the meeting on
May 20 to explain the inequity of treatment they discovered during a Friends’ Forum on April 1, where it was
discovered that at least three Friends groups had not changed their bylaws and had not been reprimanded for it.

Jim Bowen said that in response to a March request for KCLS’ strategic plan, a number of financial documents,
not an official and comprehensive strategic plan, were provided. Based on the information provided by KCLS,
and with clarification gained after meeting with Linda Glenicki, Jim Bowen presented a compilation of data
comparing the effect of library construction on library staffing in relation to revenue. He said planned
construction is to increase library square-footage by 30% by 2015 while population growth for the area served by
KCLS was projected to grow by 12% to 14% by 2015 (26% by 2030). He noted that property tax revenue will follow
the growth of the population, not the growth in library square footage or employment growth. His analysis
showed anticipated construction for 2007-2015, number of full-time equivalent staff added for each
new/expanded library and the cost of those additions. According to his calculations, from 2007-2015, the
number of full-time equivalent staff will have increased from 496.96 to 672.36 (an increase of 35.3%). Salary and
benefit expenses will have increased from $28,271,060 to $38,201,352 (an increase of 35.1%). The average
increase in salaries and benefits from adding these 175.4 full-time equivalent staff is 4.1% or more per year.
Allocated expenses increases from an additional $523,526 in 2007 to an additional $5,012,727 per year by 2015.
With revenue increases per year for the past few years averaging about 3% and a projected revenue increase for
the 2007 budget at about 3.1% (about $2.5 million), the cost for increased staff and allocated expenses for the
planned library construction for 2007 would be $1.5 million, for 2008 would be $3.5 million (or $5 million for the
two years) related to revenue growth of about $2.5 million per year. The total cost of staff and allocated

KCLS Board Meeting Page 4 27 June 2006



expenses will grow each year until at the end of 2015 staff and allocated expenses related to construction will
have added an additional $15 million per year.

Radhika Kumar thanked the Board for holding the public forum and for using the larger room. She observed that
Jim Bowen had pointed out the “disconnect” in the budget figures between what KCLS projected and his
research. She said she wished to switch from the disconnect of figures to the disconnect in semantics. Like
Barbara Spindel, Radhika Kumar said she couldn’t stand the term “clustering,” or what Orwell called
“doublespeak’” and The Colbert Report of Comedy Central calls "truthiness" because it has such warm, cozy,
“chestnuts-roasting-by-the-open-fire” linguistic associations. Consequently, when patrons and staff express their
dissonance, the Board is unable to understand it because who would oppose something as positive as
communities bonding or neighborhood libraries working together to cut expense and increase efficiency. She
proposed that patrons and staff reframe the issue to avoid doublespeak; that what’s happening in the libraries
was splintering, not clustering. She said the taxpayers of King County are opposed to this splintering and have
clustered together month after month at Board meetings to protest it.

Radhika Kumar went on to present feedback from staff, collected by the ad hoc Friends group from KCLS
employees about the cluster principles and evaluation elements. For example, when asked about ensuring a
consistent application of policies and practices across all KCLS libraries and a dissemination of the best practices
in operations and customer service, staff said: “This can be accomplished without clustering.” Regarding
increased flexibility in assigning staff where they are most needed to meet customer demand, staff said:
“Staffing should meet customer demand. [The administration] has already heard from the public that clustering
is not an improvement in service. This should tell them that staffing needs were previously being met...”
Regarding improving the overall management of community libraries by having fewer managers with a wider
scope of responsibility, staff said: “Clustering has added more layers of management. Now there are additional
members of management floating around, many unsure of what their roles are. The "legacy" managers have lost
their authority and are suffering from low morale and communication is at an all time low.” Regarding providing
more variety and a larger range of activities for staff, staff said: “Moving from a small library to a large library
has done the exact opposite. Librarians in small libraries used to do everything. Now they work at circulation
[and] their ready reference skills have suffered.” Regarding KCLS' quality service [being] consistently available at
any size library, staff said: “This is not happening...there used to be 60 hours per week of librarian staff at the
small libraries pre-clustering. Post-clustering some have about 20 hours of librarian staff.”

Radhika Kumar also read the following staff comments:

O “We are stretched more with clustering. It does seem like managerial staff and liaisons are in lots of
meetings, which is more about the hierarchical restructuring than the clustering itself. It also seems like we
have less substitute time available in the budget and this is worth asking about.”

O “Have the number of Story Times increased? If so, are these Story Times being conducted by children’s
librarians or other employees or volunteers? It is an easy mistake to make - that Story Times can be done
well by anyone. Children’s librarians bring lots of child development training and skills to their Story Times.”

O “I have not been asked for my assessment and | haven’t heard of anyone else being asked. In other words,
front-line staff (the people who directly help patrons and can see if this is working for the public or not) are
not the ones who are being asked for their assessment. If management is being asked for their assessment it
would be reasonable to keep in mind that they are not protected by the union and they are feeling enormous
pressure to please the administration in order to keep their jobs.”

O “People are dropping out all over the place. Many good staff has left since clustering began...”

Radhika Kumar said the library is an institution patrons believe in implicitly. Contrasting KCLS libraries to the
ones in her native India, she said that the U.S. public library is about free access and is the primary institution
that safeguards democracy. Splintering the community with “choice-less clustering,” is undemocratic. She asked
the Board to hear the patron and staff pain under the protests and put a stop to the needless splintering.

Marguerite Sutherland thanked the Board for providing the opportunity for a dialogue between patrons and the
KCLS Board. She presented the Board a list of questions that patrons would appreciate that the Cluster Managers
respond to, including in the area of patron services, functional responsibilities, communication, staff
participation and justification for the need for 175 new positions.

Gary Robinson offered a patron and staff perspective in which to view the cluster evaluation. He said the
evaluation should measure attainment of goals or objectives, that there should be objective criteria by which
these goals or objectives are measured and that an outside, impartial evaluation be conducted. He explained
that the patron paradigm is one of resources invested to increase the effectiveness of the neighborhood library

KCLS Board Meeting Page 5 27 June 2006



versus the Director’s paradigm in which resources are invested to increase the efficiency of the System. He said
patrons believe the paradigm should be one of a network of neighborhood libraries (as denoted in KCLS Vision
statement) versus clustering, which is antithetical to the neighborhood concept. He went on to ask if the
evaluation assesses alignment with the KCLS Vision statement. For example, the Vision calls for KCLS to be the
“Heart of the Community.” As such, clustering should enabling libraries to be the knowledge commons for the
communities; it should ignite the staff’s passion to have libraries change lives through the arrangement and
presentation of materials and services; it should reinforce forming and strengthening of relationships among
staff, patrons and ideas; and, it should create a bond that helps forge healthy, vibrant, informed and
economically viable communities. He asked the Board to reflect on the goals of clustering and ask if clustering
was needed to achieve them. He emphasized that patrons and employees do not support clustering despite the
fact the administration supports it and is adversarial, threatening and scornful to those who question it. Given
that clustering was in effect in 2001, he said KCLS should have had appropriate data by which to measure it and
a clear plan by which to evaluate it. Referring to examples of other initiatives that have been cancelled when
found to not be working, he recommended that KCLS cease clustering until it can be evaluated by an
independent, impartial third party and an internal audit function reporting to the Board is established to ensure
internal controls are in place to protect the integrity of KCLS. He also recommended that KCLS make
“enhancement and improvement of the neighborhood library experience” part of the KCLS Vision and the
Director’s performance evaluation.

Phyllis Forester presented a summary of candid, unedited patron comments as they related to the cluster
evaluation. She explained that their value is to give the Board a sense of the tone in which clustering and its
evaluation is viewed by the staff constituency. Regarding the assertion that the number of Story Times has
increased, a staff member commented: “Okay, but notice that attendance is down.” Regarding increased
circulation, staff commented: “Well, circulation has been up about 5% every year since 1990.” Regarding
employee involvement and staff training, staff commented: “The Employee Involvement Project is a huge
administrative joke. It's a new name for an old "employee feedback program" called Genesys, which was a
famous waste of time. The only remarkable part about the program is its ability to remain on the books while
being completely and totally useless.” After reading a number of similar statements pertaining to the cluster
evaluation, Phyllis Forester asked the Board to reflect on the tone of the comments and ask themselves how
widespread the cynicism is. She asserted that the 92% vote of no confidence indicates it is widespread. She
stated that most of her colleagues who read this cluster evaluation see the report as numbers generated to
support clustering, but have little if anything to do with clustering. She asked what it would take to get the
Board’s attention and make them realize that patrons want their community libraries and staff back. Patrons
want the staff to know their children when they’re young and write letters of recommendation for them when
they go to college, which can’t happen with rotated staff. Lucy Krakowiak asked for clarification about how the
staff commentary was gathered. Phyllis Forester said staff was not interviewed, but comments were gathered
from a random sampling of staff System-wide.

In an effort to help the Board understand the effect of clustering, Lori Robinson likened it to the inconsistency
caused if the judges’ bailiffs were rotated. She said KCLS’ administration is out-of-step with its patrons, many
who will no longer support KCLS through levy lifts, etc. because they have difficulty knowing what information
supplied by the administration they can believe. She said employees do not have confidence in the
administration, which is why KCLS has a union. She added that the administration, as documented in
communication, is scornful and adversarial of patrons. Lori Robinson noted that the Director has not had a
written performance evaluation for at least the past two years and that the Board has not had an effective
strategy session since 2003. She explained that only from the urging of King County Government is a written
performance evaluation of the Director being drafted by LeRoy McCullough. Regarding clustering, Lori Robinson
said the practice has not delivered on its unpronounced promise and is not worthy of continuation. She said
patrons know there was no analysis of the existing clusters before System-wide implementation and that there
was no long-term strategic plan based on analysis of operating costs beyond an analysis of square footage. She
added that the administration did not communicate with Friends of the Library regarding clustering. She
concluded by saying the Director’s leadership is not aligned with principles of enlightened leadership; that his
concept of leadership appears to be one of driving his personal agenda; that he does not inspire patrons or staff
employees and that he has lost patron and employee constituencies. She also said the Board’s governance has
been less than expected by patrons. She said a written performance evaluation of the Director, including goals
and objectives, needs be conducted at least annually. She said meetings with patrons need to be held on a
guarterly basis so that Board hears directly from patrons. Finally, she said there should be an internal audit
function at KCLS to ensure that internal controls are in place to protect the integrity of KCLS. She emphasized
that patrons want to continue to support KCLS, which is why they’ve invested so much time in this cause.

KCLS Board Meeting Page 6 27 June 2006



Becky Brooks said she and her husband have been Friends of the Issaquah Library for 14 years. She said their
passion was the library and that they’ve seen both good and bad at KCLS, but nothing so heart wrenching as
what Radhika Kumar referred to as “splintering.” She said they’ve lost their managing and assistant managing
librarians. She added that it is a testament to the Library System that patrons who care so much about the
library have spoken month after month about their desire to maintain the individuality of their library. She said
staff is what makes individual libraries unique. She concluded by saying that the many people take KCLS for
granted and don’t know what’s happening, will eventually ask “what happened” after its too late.

Becky Brooks read a statement on behalf of Nona Martin, who was unable to attend the meeting. Nona Martin
said every time she goes into the Issaquah Library there is a different person behind the reference desk. She said
she heard an "old timer" trying to explain things to a new person at that desk. She asked if there is something in
writing explaining when the cluster concept will be evaluated and if it will be done by an independent group
(versus an internal mechanism) because there is no way a rotation system can work effectively. She said she is
very upset about this terrible misuse of valuable personnel and said she doesn't understand how the Director and
the Board can continue to not respond to the staff and public.

John Green made a presentation regarding the importance of data reliability and validity, especially as it relates
to the service quality section of the Patron Experience Transformation Project survey. After reviewing
background material in research methodologies, John Green compared the service quality findings made using
KCLS’ survey methodology contrasted to his own (using the same data). He emphasized that the conclusions
drawn are not valid or reliable, and that the model could not be replicated and does not fit the data. He added
that the survey methodology didn’t follow the proscribed steps. In addition, he said the data may prove
untenable and indefensible for use as a basis for any subsequent business decisions. He pointed out that the data
cannot be generalized to the total patron population and mentioned that a 20-question memo submitted to the
survey authors on March 8, 2006 for clarification of steps and other statistical criteria was not answered.

Lucy Krakowiak concluded the Public Forum and restated the Board’s intention was to invite members of the
public to share their comments and concerns with members of the Board and Administration about library-
related issues. She reiterated that the staff was to respond to main topics and the Board would take the
comments and responses under advisement. She asked patrons’ to provide a written copy of their comments.

Lucy Krakowiak asked staff to respond generally to clustering comments, acknowledging that some comments
will require more in-depth follow-up. Bill Ptacek reiterated that the restructuring was multi-purposed: to
position the library for future, improve library function and operation and make the best use of library
resources. He said KCLS did not have a blueprint for clustering and acknowledged that it isn’t perfect. He said it
KCLS continues to make changes as we go forward and will continue to do so as necessary. He said patrons have
raised valid points and that KCLS is trying to live up to its Vision while facing the challenge of population growth
and demand for services. He noted that KCLS’ administration is working with Local 1857 through monthly labor
management meetings to identify and implement improvements to a number of aspects of the restructuring.

Nancy Smith said she was intrigued by Gary Robinson’s discussion of the paradigm between effectiveness and
efficiency. She said KCLS didn’t set out to create such a dichotomy. She pointed out that the components of the
cluster evaluation were developed with input from members of the public during Board meetings and added that
the evaluation was based only on those components adopted by the Board. Regarding the cluster evaluation
elements, Nancy Smith explained that there are areas for which there are currently no metrics in place, but
noted that staff is in the process of developing them for the full-year evaluation. She said KCLS intends to
conduct a follow-up to the Patron Experience Transformation Project survey, as well as a survey of patrons
specifically related to their reactions to clustering. In addition, she said a new analysis of staffing needs with
clusters in place is nearing completion. Part of that analysis includes building a staffing baseline “zero” using
current business levels and technology. From that baseline, staffing and operations within clusters can be
reviewed to determine a revised number of new positions to be created for new and expanded facilities. This is
expected to be less than the previously projected 175 using previous staffing models.

Richard Eadie said the Board meets once a month and has remained mute regarding clustering because they
don’t have an effective way of responding. Due to a shared concern about clustering, he asked staff to explore a
couple of ideas, including an independent audit of clustering’s effectiveness, starting with basis of what it’s
intended to do. Though a conclusive search has not been performed, Bill Ptacek said the opinion of Clark Nuber
(the firm who helped KCLS develop its Vision statement and conducted internal departmental audits) was
sought. After reviewing materials about clustering, Clark Nuber expressed concern that their firm wouldn’t be
the best equipped to conduct the evaluation and pointed out that given the issues, any consultant hired would
have perceived bias as an “employee” of KCLS. The recommended KCLS pursue a facilitated discussion with

KCLS Board Meeting Page 7 27 June 2006






